

Business

GCSE 2012

Applied Business Guide to Controlled

Assessment

J213/J226

Version 1 September 2012



www.ocr.org.uk/gcse2012

Contents

1	Introduction	3				
	1.1 What Is Controlled Assessment?	3				
	1.2 What does 'control' actually mean?	3				
	1.3 What is the purpose of this Guide?	3				
2	Summary of the Controlled Assessment units	5				
	Unit A242: Making your mark in business	5				
	Unit A244: Business and you	5				
3	Teacher guidance on how to plan Controlled Assessment	6				
	3.1 Controlled Assessment delivery flow chart	6				
	3.2 Guidance on the release of Controlled Assessment tasks to candidates	7				
	3.3 Guidance on research/data collection	8				
	3.4 Guidance on the production of the outcome	9				
4	Controlled Assessment candidate guidelines	12				
	4.1 Task setting	12				
	4.2 Task taking	12				
5	Teacher guidance on task marking					
	5.1 Generic guidance on how to mark Controlled Assessment tasks	14				
	5.2 Unpacking assessment objectives in Controlled Assessment tasks	14				
	5.3 Interpretation of the Controlled Assessment marking criteria	15				
	5.4 Authentication of Controlled Assessment outcomes	15				
	5.5 Internal Standardisation of Controlled Assessment	16				
	5.6 Moderation of Controlled Assessment	16				
	5.7 Minimum requirements for Controlled Assessment	16				
	5.8 Submission date for Controlled Assessment	17				
6	FAQs	18				
7	Guidance on downloading Controlled Assessment task from Interchange	23				
	Before you start	23				
	Step 1 – Log into Interchange	24				
	Step 2 – Navigate to Controlled Assessment materials area	25				
	Step 3 – Search for materials					
	Step 4 – Open materials					
	Step 5 – Troubleshooting	28				
8	Guidance for the production of electronic Controlled Assessment	31				

1.1 What Is Controlled Assessment?

High, medium or limited control levels are set for each of the Controlled Assessment processes: task setting, task taking and task marking. For each stage, the level of control will ensure reliability and authenticity, and make assessments more manageable for teachers and candidates.

Weighting of Controlled Assessments is defined by Ofqual subject criteria and, for GCSE Applied Business, will be 60% of the total assessment.

In response to reforms announced by the Government and in response to Ofqual mandated changes to GCSEs, unitised assessment of this qualification is being replaced by linear assessment.

This means that candidates commencing a two year course from September 2012 will take all of their GCSE units at the end of the course in June 2014.

1.2 What does 'control' actually mean?

OCR defines levels of control as follows:

Formal supervision (High level of control) – the candidate must be in direct sight of the supervisor at all times. Use of resources and interaction with other candidates is tightly prescribed.

Informal supervision (Medium level of control) – questions/tasks are outlined, the use of resources is not tightly prescribed and assessable outcomes may be informed by group work. Supervision is confined to (i) ensuring that the contributions of individual candidates are recorded accurately, and (ii) ensuring that plagiarism does not take place. The supervisor may provide limited guidance to candidates.

Limited supervision (Limited level of control) – requirements are clearly specified, but some work may be completed without direct supervision and will not contribute directly to assessable outcomes.

This Guide provides detailed information for teachers about how to manage Controlled Assessment: some of the information applies to all GCSE subjects and some information provides subject specific guidance. It is important to make the point that this Guide plays a secondary role to the Specification itself. The Specification is the document on which assessment is based and specifies what content and skills need to be covered in delivering the course. At all times, therefore, this teacher support should be read in conjunction with the Specification. If clarification on a particular point is sought then that clarification should be found in the Specification itself.

Teaching of this qualification will vary greatly from school to school and from teacher to teacher. With that in mind, this Guide is offered as guidance but may be subject to modifications by the individual teacher.

2 Summary of the Controlled Assessment units

Unit A242: Making your mark in business

This unit represents 60% of the total GCSE (Single Award) marks and 30% of the total GCSE (Double Award) marks. It has a maximum of 60 marks.

Candidates will choose one business scenario from a selection of five. They then choose a local business on which to base their subsequent research and complete all the tasks.

This unit is internally assessed, applying the principles of Controlled Assessment. Controls are set within the assessment in each of the stages of the assessment process:

Task setting: high level of control in relation to the setting of tasks.

Task taking: this stage is divided into 2 different stages, each with a different level of control:

- Research/data collection: limited level of control
- Analysis and evaluation: high level of control

Task marking: <u>medium</u> level of control.

More information about each stage of the process is provided in the following sections of this Guide.

Unit A244: Business and you

This unit represents 60% of the total GCSE (Single Award) marks and 30% of the total GCSE (Double Award) marks. It has a maximum of 60 marks.

Candidates will choose one job role from a selection of five and investigate a range of human resource activities in relation to this role.

This unit is internally assessed, applying the principles of Controlled Assessment. Controls are set within the assessment in each of the stages of the assessment process:

Task setting: high level of control in relation to the setting of tasks.

Task taking: this stage is divided into 2 different stages, each with a different level of control:

- Research/data collection: limited level of control
- Analysis and evaluation: high level of control

Task marking: medium level of control.

More information about each stage of the process is provided in the following sections of this Guide.

3 Teacher guidance on how to plan Controlled Assessment

3.1 Controlled Assessment delivery flow chart



3.2 Guidance on the release of Controlled Assessment tasks to candidates

3.2.1 Choice of Controlled Assessment task

For these GCSEs in Applied Business, OCR will assume a high level of control with regard to task setting. A number of scenarios will be available from OCR for the Controlled Assessment units. Once a scenario has been chosen, then the candidate will carry out necessary research in order to respond to a series of tasks. These tasks have been designed to meet the full assessment requirements of the unit. It is important that before candidates begin the assessment, they are equipped with the necessary knowledge, understanding and skills specified in each of the unit specifications for Units A242 and A244.

Unit A242 – The candidate must choose one business scenario from a list of five and then choose a local business on which to base their subsequent investigations. The series of tasks which the candidate must complete are supplied by OCR. It should be noted that the types of business scenario have been chosen to be as wide ranging as possible to suit all centre requirements.

Unit A244 – The candidate must choose one job role scenario from a list of five and investigate a range of human resource activities in relation to this role. The series of tasks which the candidate must complete are supplied by OCR. It should be noted that the types of job role scenarios have been chosen to be as wide ranging as possible to suit all centre requirements.

Further guidance on how to choose a scenario for the Controlled Assessment will be provided within the Controlled Assessment scenario.

Live OCR Controlled Assessment material must NOT be used as practice material. Centres should devise their own practice material or use the specimen Controlled Assessment material.

3.2.2 When and how to give Controlled Assessment tasks to candidates

Controlled Assessment tasks will be available from Interchange. Centres must be aware that live Controlled Assessment material will be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure to ensure that it continues to be fit for purpose. Should it be necessary to amend or revise the material then centres will be notified.

Controlled assessment tasks may be undertaken at any point between release of the task by OCR and the examination series for which the task must be submitted. **Centres must ensure that candidates undertake a task that is valid for submission in the year in which the candidate intends to submit it**, i.e. with linear specifications this will be the final June series of their course.

The series in which each task can be submitted will be clearly marked on the front cover of each task. Tasks will not be valid for submission in any examination series other than that indicated.

Centres should refer to the sample scheme of work and lesson plans which are available to download from OCR's website to assist planning and delivery of the Controlled Assessment units and its assessments.

There must be a medium level of supervision when candidates complete the research/data collection element of these units. Candidates may need access to the internet; library, textbooks, and/or optional visits to local businesses. This research element can be carried out as part of a group or individually as outlined in the specification.

(a) Authenticity control: Candidate can complete the research individually or in a group without direct teacher supervision. In Unit A242, each candidate MUST carry out both individual and group research. The write up of findings and responding to tasks must be completed individually and under direct supervision. The teacher must be able to authenticate the work.

(b) Feedback control: Feedback to the candidate will be permissible but tightly defined. Within these specifications, OCR expects teachers to equip candidates with the knowledge, understanding and skills which they will need before they respond to the tasks. It should be remembered that candidates are required to reach their own judgements and conclusions without any guidance or assistance from others. When supervising tasks, teachers are expected to:

Exercise continuing supervision of work in order to monitor progress and to prevent plagiarism

Exercise continuing supervision of practical work to ensure essential compliance with Health and Safety requirements

Ensure that the work is completed in accordance with the specification requirements and can be assessed in accordance with the specified marking criteria and procedures.

(c) Time control: The overall time limits available to the candidate to complete the Controlled Assessments are specified in Section 4.2 of these specifications. A more detailed breakdown of time limits for particular tasks is contained in the specimen Controlled Assessment material for Units A242 and A244.

Tasks should be completed within the time limits set, and be supervised and marked by the teacher. Some of the work, by its very nature, may be undertaken outside the centre, eg research work. The use and application of the research material will be undertaken under direct teacher supervision. With all internally assessed work, the teacher must be satisfied that the work submitted for assessment is the candidate's own work and be able to authenticate it using the specified procedure in Section 4.3.5 of these specifications.

(d) Collaboration control: Group work is permissible in some cases for the research phase of the units. However, each candidate must respond to the tasks individually. Where group work is suggested as an alternative to individual work, candidates will still be analysing the outcome of the group work on an individual basis before forming their own conclusions.

(e) Resource control: Access to resources will be limited to those appropriate to the task and as required by the unit. Candidates will need to be provided with the most appropriate materials and equipment to allow them full access to the marking criteria but this must be closely monitored and supervised, especially the level of ICT access. During the write up (Unit A242 Tasks 3, 4 and 5 and Unit A244 Tasks 2, 3, 4 and 5) candidates should only have access to their research which they have made during the research phase of task taking (Unit A242 Task 2 and Unit A244 Task 1). Generating and reviewing the action plan should be done in the specific time allocated for the completion of this task and should not form part of the write-up phase. It is the responsibility of the

centre to ensure that these are only research and that they do not include a draft or final version of the tasks.

3.4.1 Controls for the production of the outcome

Teachers must keep live Controlled Assessment tasks secure and confidential at all times whilst in their possession. For example, candidates may collect the results of any research or investigations undertaken in a research folder which must be handed in to the teacher before the writing up sessions begin. In such circumstances, it is the responsibility of the teacher to keep the research folders secure between the writing up sessions and that candidates do not have access to these folders outside of the allotted sessions.

There must be a high level of supervision when candidates complete the Controlled Assessment tasks for these units. Although candidates will have access to their research notes, they must work individually and be supervised at all times.

Analysis and evaluation of findings - high control

When candidates analyse and evaluate their findings as they address each of the Controlled Assessment tasks (excluding the research tasks, which carry no marks), they must be supervised at all times and work individually.

Completing the tasks

The candidate will be provided with sufficient time to complete all of the tasks. It is suggested that evidence is produced in a number of sessions, each focusing on a specific mini-task.

Each candidate must produce individual and authentic evidence for each of the (mini) tasks. It is particularly important that those candidates who conducted research as part of the group still produce individual evidence.

The teacher may give appropriate support and guidance to the candidates during the research phase of these units but not during the write-up phase. This support and guidance should focus on checking that the candidates understand what is expected of them. It is not acceptable for the teacher to provide model responses or to work through answers in detail.

The candidate will have the opportunity to use information from a wide range of resources as part of their research time in Units A242 and A244. This research will help them to produce evidence which is clearly targeted to meeting the assessment requirements of each of the remaining tasks. It is not permissible, however, for candidates to introduce any new material into their evidence that is not accessed during this research time, and teachers must safeguard against this.

Candidates must also be guided on the use of information to ensure that confidentiality and intellectual property rights are maintained at all times. It is essential that any material directly used from a source is appropriately and rigorously referenced. In both Units A242 and A244, candidates

will be asked to complete a bibliography during their research time which will be required for review at the point of internal assessment and external moderation.

3.4.2 Controlled Assessment task security

It is the responsibility of the centre to ensure that downloaded Controlled Assessment Tasks and candidates' scripts are stored securely. Any breach in security must be reported to OCR as soon a possible by submitting a written report (a blank report form is available on Interchange) from Head of Centre to OCR detailing the circumstances, the candidates concerned and any action taken.

Candidates' scripts for all completed Controlled Assessment tasks must be stored securely and they should be available for moderation. It is suggested that they are destroyed after the last date for Enquiries about Results following the examination series in which entries for the units concerned are made.

Candidate absence at the time of assessment

If a candidate is absent from a centre when an assessment is carried out, the Controlled Assessment task may be set at an alternative time provided that the centre is satisfied that security has been maintained by keeping all materials secure.

Unexpected circumstances

If an unexpected problem (such as a fire alarm or other circumstances beyond the teachers' control) occurs while a Controlled Assessment task is taking place, the task may be resumed subsequently provided the teacher ensures that no candidate is likely to have been advantaged or disadvantaged by doing so.

3.4.3 Presentation of work

Candidates must observe certain procedures in the production of Controlled Assessments.

charts, graphs, images and tables may be produced using appropriate ICT. These should be inserted into the candidate's evidence at the appropriate place

any copied material must be suitably acknowledged

quotations must be clearly marked and a reference provided wherever possible

work submitted for moderation or marking must be marked with the:

- centre number
- centre name
- candidate number
- candidate name
- unit code and title

Work submitted on paper for moderation or marking must be secured by treasury tags. Work submitted in digital format (CD or online) must be in a suitable file structure as shown in Appendix A of the Specification.

4 Controlled Assessment candidate guidelines

4.1 Task setting

For this subject OCR will provide a list of tasks.

4.2 Task taking

4.2.1 What can I do in relation to research, drafting and re-drafting?

Your teacher will discuss the tasks on offer and the proposed areas of enquiry and the resources available. An induction period into the research methods, sourcing and the use of equipment may also take place. Time constraints and a programme should be adopted and this will be explained by your teacher.

Your research and planning may involve interviews, fieldwork, visits, library research, internet research or questionnaires. You should keep a record of the sources you have consulted at this stage and this will form part of your portfolio. You should provide a plan of action to the teacher which can be discussed. You teacher will inform you what materials are appropriate and inappropriate.

Your draft piece will be discussed with your teacher and they may offer advice, answer any questions and give feedback. Throughout this process your teacher will supervise to ensure there is no plagiarism and will ensure all your work is within the Health and Safety requirements and that all candidates work is in accordance with the Controlled Assessment regulations. At no stage will model answers be provided. You should reach your own conclusions and make your own judgements and any teacher support will be recorded.

You may be given opportunity to edit, check re-draft and re-organise your work. During this period your teacher may make general observations but will not give any specific advice.

4.2.2 How much teacher support can I expect?

During your work for Controlled Assessment you must produce work/evidence independently but your teacher will be able to give you some advice, support, guidance and feedback but the amount will vary depending upon the type of task you are doing.

You must make your own judgements and draw your own conclusions but your teacher will:

offer advice about how best to approach a task

offer guidance on the way you work in groups so that you all have an opportunity to tackle your tasks

offer advice to help your research, possibly arranging visits to place of interest, if this is appropriate

monitor your progress to make sure your work gets underway in a planned and timely manner

ensure that your work meets the Specification requirements

keep a log of the feedback they give you

supervise any practical work you do to ensure you receive advice about health and safety.

The support given by your teacher will be to make sure you understand what it is you have to do. Your teacher will not be allowed to provide model responses for you or work through your responses or outcomes in detail.

4.2.3 What can I expect in the supervised sessions?

This period should include some form of evaluation either in the written form, in a teacher interview or a presentation to the group. For the last two your teacher may record these sessions. This is particularly essential in group work where the teacher will be attempting to ascertain your individual contribution within the group.

You should reference all sources used and any materials you have used in the whole piece whether in supervised or unsupervised sessions. Quotations should be clearly marked and referenced to ensure all intellectual property rights are maintained. It is unlikely that complete downloaded documents from the internet are suitable. Your teacher will sign an authentication form to complete the process. You may also be asked to sign the form.

5 Teacher guidance on task marking

5.1 Generic guidance on how to mark Controlled Assessment tasks

The marking criteria detail the skills, knowledge and understanding which the candidate is required to demonstrate.

The (mini) task should be marked by the teacher according to the given marking criteria using a 'best fit' approach. For each of the (mini) tasks, the assessor should select the descriptors, provided in the marking criteria, which most closely describe the quality of work being marked.

Marking should be positive, rewarding achievement rather than penalising failure or omissions. The award of marks must be directly related to the marking criteria.

Teachers use their professional judgement in selecting the descriptor which best describes the work of the candidate.

To select the most appropriate mark within this descriptor, teachers should use the following guidance:

where the candidate's work convincingly meets the descriptor, the higher marks in the mark range should be awarded

where the candidate's work adequately meets the descriptor, the most appropriate mark in the middle range should be awarded

where the candidate's work just meets the descriptor, the lowest marks in the mark range should be awarded.

The final mark for the candidate for each unit is out of a total of 60 and is found by totalling the marks for each of the (mini) tasks.

5.2 Unpacking assessment objectives in Controlled Assessment tasks

Assessment objectives (AOs) identify what the candidate has to do. They specify the context and use the 'command words' to indicate the level of the intellectual task, so, for example, the candidate may be directed to 'identify', 'describe' or 'explain'.

Assessment objective 1 assesses candidates' ability to recall, select and communicate their knowledge and understanding of concepts issues and terminology;

Assessment objective 2 assesses candidates' ability to apply skills, knowledge and understanding in a variety of contexts and in planning and carrying out investigations and tasks;

Assessment objective 3 assesses candidates' ability to analyse and evaluate, make reasoned judgements and present conclusions.

5.3 Interpretation of the Controlled Assessment marking criteria

These general assessment objectives have been contextualised to the specific tasks in each Controlled Assessment (see the assessment grids below). So the teacher needs to:

- 1. identify the knowledge and skills the candidate will need to demonstrate if they have meet the AO
- 2. identify what the candidate has to do with this knowledge and/or skill; for example, should they be describing or explaining?

Each assessment objective has been written at 3 levels, which increase in intellectual difficulty. The teacher will need to make a holistic judgement of which level (1, 2 or 3) best fits the candidate's work.

In general terms, a candidate who is able to produce some limited evidence for a task is likely to achieve Mark Band 1. A candidate who produces a range of evidence but where there are significant gaps in coverage, knowledge and understanding, is likely to achieve Mark Band 2. A candidate who has addresses most, or all of the requirements needed to fully complete the tasks is likely to achieve Mark Band 3.

For example, in Mark Band 1 a candidate might identify some relevant knowledge required to address the task but fails to adequately explain the issues. In Mark Band 2 a candidate might list a comprehensive range of issues and explore them all to the required standard but some explanations are incorrect or lacking application to the context. In Mark Band 3 a candidate is likely to identify an appropriate range of issues and analyse them all appropriately, in-depth and within the required context.

5.4 Authentication of Controlled Assessment outcomes

Teachers must be confident that the work they mark is the candidate's own. This does not mean that a candidate must be supervised throughout the completion of all work but the teacher/course tutor must exercise sufficient supervision, or introduce sufficient checks, to be in a position to judge the authenticity of the candidate's work.

Candidates must not plagiarise. Plagiarism is the submission of another's work as one's own and/or failure to acknowledge the source correctly. Plagiarism is considered to be malpractice and could lead to the candidate being disqualified. Plagiarism sometimes occurs innocently when candidates are unaware of the need to reference or acknowledge their sources. It is therefore

important that centres ensure that candidates understand that the work they submit must be their own and that they understand the meaning of plagiarism and what penalties may be applied.

Candidates may refer to research, quotations or evidence but they must list their sources. The rewards from acknowledging sources, and the credit they will gain from doing so, should be emphasised to candidates, as well as the potential risks of failing to acknowledge such material.

The candidate must sign a declaration to this effect. Centres should reinforce this message to ensure that candidates understand what is expected of them.

Please note: Centres must confirm to OCR that the evidence produced by the candidate is authentic. The Centre Authentication Form includes a declaration for assessors to sign. It is a requirement of the Ofqual Criteria for GCSE Qualifications that proof of authentication is received.

5.5 Internal Standardisation of Controlled Assessment

It is important that all internal assessors, working in the same subject area, work to common standards. Centres must ensure that the internal standardisation of marks across assessors and teaching groups takes place using an appropriate procedure.

This can be done in a number of ways. In the first year, reference material and OCR training meetings will provide a basis for centres' own standardisation. In subsequent years, this, or centres' own archive material, may be used. Centres are advised to hold preliminary meetings of staff involved to compare standards through cross-marking a small sample of work. After most marking has been completed, a further meeting at which work is exchanged and discussed will enable final adjustments to be made.

5.6 Moderation of Controlled Assessment

All work is marked by the teacher and internally standardised by the centre. Marks are then submitted to OCR, after which moderation takes place in accordance with OCR procedures: refer to the OCR website for submission dates of the marks to OCR. The purpose of moderation is to ensure that the standard of the award of marks for work is the same for each centre and that each teacher has applied the standards appropriately across the range of candidates within the centre.

The sample of work which is presented to the Moderator for moderation must show how the marks have been awarded in relation to the marking criteria. Each candidate's work should have a cover sheet attached to it with a summary of the marks awarded. If the work is to be submitted in digital format this cover sheet should also be submitted electronically within each of the candidate's files.

5.7 Minimum requirements for Controlled Assessment

There should be clear evidence that work has been attempted and some work produced. If a candidate submits no work for an internally assessed component, then the candidate should be indicated as being absent from that component on the mark sheets submitted to OCR. If a candidate completes any work at all for an internally assessed component, then the work should be assessed according to the internal assessment objectives and marking instructions and the appropriate mark awarded, which may be zero. Candidate's marks must be despatched to the Moderator and to OCR. Please refer to the OCR website for details of submission dates relevant to the current series of examinations.

When can Controlled Assessments be taken?

Controlled assessment tasks may still be undertaken at any point between release of the task by OCR and the examination series for which the task must be submitted. **Centres must ensure that candidates undertake a task that is valid for submission in the year in which the candidate intends to submit it**.

The series in which each task can be submitted will be clearly marked on the front cover of each task. Tasks will not be valid for submission in any examination series other than that indicated.

Tasks for the controlled assessment will be made available on OCR Interchange, ahead of the examination series for which the tasks are to be submitted. These will be removed upon expiry. Guidance on how to access controlled assessment tasks from OCR Interchange is available on the OCR website: <u>www.ocr.org.uk</u>.

When can teachers and candidates access the material?

Controlled Assessment tasks will be available from Interchange on 1 June two years prior to an assessment series, i.e. 1 April 2013 for assessment in June 2015 series.

Tasks are reviewed every two years and it is the responsibility of centres to make sure that candidates are submitting the correct task for their series.

Why are you not making hard copies available to centres?

This is an internal assessment and centres are responsible for the resource of internal assessment. It would be impossible to despatch hard copies of the Controlled Assessment without vast amounts of provisional entry data.

Can any preparation work be done out of the classroom?

Yes. Controls are set at the level of tasks setting, task taking and task marking. Preparation work comes into the task taking level, under Research and Data Collection, which have a limited level of control i.e. work can be carried out without direct supervision. More guidance on this can be found can be found in Section 4: Controlled Assessment of all revised GCSE Specifications (Linear 2012).

Is there a minimum or maximum time that can be spent on the assessments?

Suggested time limits vary per subject: there are suggested time limits given in Section 4: Controlled Assessment of all revised GCSE Specifications (Linear 2012).

Where can the Controlled materials be accessed and by whom?

Controlled Assessment tasks and other documents are accessed via Interchange.

Centre access to the Interchange Controlled Assessment area will be available to the registered Centre User (normally the Examinations Officer). However, the Centre User can set access permissions to others within their centre, eg HODs, subject leaders or subject teachers.

How long is each assessment valid for, i.e. can we use last year's one this year?

Tasks are reviewed every two years and it is the responsibility of centres to make sure that candidates are working on and submitting the correct task for that series. Tasks will be removed from Interchange once they have expired.

Where can the Mark Schemes be accessed?

The Mark Scheme can be accessed from Interchange. A specimen Mark Scheme can be found at the end of the Sample Assessment Material document on the qualification webpage.

Do we have to take the Controlled Assessment under exam conditions/teacher supervision?

Yes, but only for the write up , i.e. the last part of Controlled Assessment when candidates are producing the outcomes of their research – note that this can be over more than one supervised session. More guidance on this can be found in Section 4: Controlled Assessment of all revised GCSE Specifications (Linear 2012).

Can learners re-sit the qualification?

Yes but only in its entirety, re-sitting individual units mid-course is no longer possible.

Can a candidate carry forward controlled assessment results if they are retaking the qualification?

Yes they can.

Are materials sent based on estimated entries or can we download them from Interchange?

Tasks will only be available as downloads from Interchange: they will not be sent in hard copy to centres.

Do we mark them or do OCR ?

Controlled Assessment tasks for ALL subjects are internally marked by centres and externally moderated by OCR.

When do we start and finish the Controlled Assessment?

Controlled Assessment is a form of internal assessment and as such there isn't a specified date in which Controlled Assessment has to be undertaken.

Controlled assessment tasks may be undertaken at any point between release of the task by the centre and the examination series for which the task must be submitted. Centres must ensure that candidates undertake a task that is valid for submission in the year in which the candidate intends to submit it.

The series in which each task can be submitted will be clearly marked on the front cover of each task.

Can I modify the scenario?

A choice of scenarios will be provided which will supply the candidate with enough of a range to make an informed choice of an area that is of particular interest to them. For A242, the actual business in the local area that is selected should be similar to, but not necessarily identical to, the business in the scenario.

Can I devise my own tasks?

No. The tasks are clearly linked into assessment objectives so they cannot be changed.

Can candidates take tasks home to complete?

This will vary from subject to subject but on of the principles of Controlled Assessment is to complete tasks within the classroom. Therefore it is expected that for this specification the response to the assessment tasks will be completed under classroom conditions.

What can candidates bring into class to help them do a task?

Teachers will give clear guidance on what materials are suitable and what are not. It is likely that candidates will have access to their research which they collected in the allotted time for researching their chosen context and also their action plans. No new material should be introduced once the allotted time for researching and creating/revising the action plan has passed. It may be that candidates hold some of their research on-line which they may wish to refer to during the write up phase. This is possible as long as the Centre can validate that this information was collected during the research phase to the unit and no new material has been added.

During controlled conditions are candidates able to access ICT? If graphs/charts were produced as part of the research, are these OK to take into the controlled conditions?

It is acceptable for any graphs/charts that were produced during the research phase to be taken into the controlled conditions, eg Unit A242, Task 2 is the research phase and as part of that task candidates are required to collect research results. The Controlled Assessment tasks state that in Task 3 for example, candidates can take their research findings into the controlled conditions. During controlled conditions, access to Internet etc is not permitted.

Can Controlled Assessment be handwritten?

Yes or it can be completed using ICT. ICT can be used for the write up but centres must ensure that the candidates only have access to research if this is stored electronically. Access to the internet etc is not acceptable.

Can candidates word process their work and use ICT to draw graphs?

It is expected that candidates will use ICT in the production of their work wherever applicable.

Can candidates have access to the Internet?

Yes in the research phase as the candidate investigates particular contexts but not in the write up.

Can candidates talk to each other?

In the learning and research phases of the unit, it may be that candidates pool resources and some generic classroom activities are created to reinforce learning and understanding. However, in the write up the candidate needs to work on their own to produce individual, authentic evidence.

What should I do if there is evidence of candidates producing identical work?

The teacher is required to authenticate the work and the marks awarded for each candidate. Where the teacher is not prepared to authenticate the work, marks should not be submitted.

Teachers should remain alert to any potential plagiarism and report it to the school authorities and take the action above.

Are candidates able to copy sections straight from a book or a website?

This will very rarely be appropriate and only where tasks require the use of reference books or websites. As a requirement for both Controlled Assessment units a bibliography is required with all sources fully acknowledged.

Can candidates draft and redraft tasks?

Candidates can redraft tasks in most subjects. Where this is the case teacher involvement should be advisory at a top level only. For example, if the candidate is struggling with evaluation techniques, teachers could offer support on the types of techniques that could be considered - i.e. cost/benefit, short vs long term, etc but specifics of assessment tasks should not be entered into. All drafts should be included in the candidate portfolio.

Can I tell candidates their mark for each task?

Yes. But the marked task must not be given back to or shown to the candidate. The candidates must also be told that this is a provisional mark, subject to moderation and scaling from a raw mark to a UMS mark. It might be better practice to give the candidate an indication of the mark rather than the mark itself.

What feedback can I give to a candidate?

Formative feedback is important. Feedback specific to the completed task must not be given. The type of feedback should be advisory and should focus on top level techniques and areas of study that will help a candidate to demonstrate their knowledge/understanding of a particular issue.

Is there a way of me sharing good practice as a teacher with other practitioners?

Yes you can use the e-community for the new specification which has been established with a view to providing a forum for practitioners to share good practice and resources connected with the delivery of the course.

Can I get guidance on my marking?

Yes. OCR runs regular Professional Development events where internal assessment will feature strongly; however live assessment material cannot be commented upon. The Qualification Manager for the relevant subject can be contacted via the Customer Contact Centre. Mark schemes will be available in the specification to guide the Centre through the marking process. Exemplar materials with moderator commentary are available on the qualification webpage.

Will the marking of the tasks be moderated?

Yes. A moderator, appointed by OCR, will moderate a sample of your candidates' work. The Centre should keep a portfolio of work for each of its candidates with as much evidence as possible. The Moderator will inform the Centre what they need to see in the first instance.

Guidance on downloading Controlled Assessment task from Interchange

Before you start

Controlled Assessment materials will be available to download from OCR Interchange. If you are not a current user of OCR Interchange, please contact OCR's Customer Contact Centre on 01223 553998 to request an Interchange user account.

Further details on how to access the materials is available on Interchange.

Click on the following link <u>https://interchange.ocr.org.uk</u>

Enter your log in details

Welcome			
You can use Interc qualifications, 24 I		te information and online services for all OCR	
New features will I		Please check the <u>OCR website</u> and your email	
for information.			
Login			1
	99373	(for centre users this will be your centre	
Login ID:		number)	
Username:			
Password:		(case sensitive)	
	Forgotten Your Password?		
		Login]

Sign Up

Step 2 – Navigate to Controlled Assessment materials area

Click on 'Coursework and tests'

Click on 'Controlled Assessment materials'

** If you are unable to see either of these menu items then it is likely that you do not have the 'Tutor / teacher' role assigned to you.

ECOGNISING ACHIEVEMENT	nterchange	⑦ Help ⊗ Log o
		🖹 Print pag
ou are here: Home		
Bytask	Welcome to Inte	erchange
→ Entries	What's new?	
→ Coursework and tests	Support material	
→ e-assessment	Controlled assessment materials	ign of our secure website, Interchange, which has been redeveloped following your feedback. Find
→ Certification claims	Science co-ordinator materials	nae.
→ Results	Tests	:ience
→ Post results	Key Skills test invoices	to help teachers review the performance of individual candidates or whole schools. <u>Find out more</u>
→ Centre information	Moderation	
→ Assessors	OCR Repository	iemes?
→ Search	(VQ)' role - your Interchange Ce	35' in the left-hand menu. If you can't see this menu item, you need to check you have the 'Read On' ntre Administrator will be able to help you with this.
→ Resources		
→ Admin	Tell us what you thin	k
By qualification		
→ GCE, GCSE, Principal Learning	As with all of our products and s feedback to interchange@ocr.o	services, we value your feedback and would appreciate any comments that you might have. <u>Send us your</u> r <u>a.uk</u> .
→ OCR Nationals		
→ Functional Skills		
→ Skills for Life		
→ NVQ		

Step 3 – Search for materials

You can search for materials by unit code. Enter the unit code and click on the 'search' button.

Or, you can search for materials by subject information by selecting from the 'drop down' options.

All available documents will be displayed below the search.

COGNISING ACHIEVEMENT	nterchange		🕜 Help	🛞 Log out
			ß	Print page
u are here: Home » Controlle	d assessment materials			
Bytask	Controlled Assessment Ma	aterials		
→ Entries				
→ Coursework and tests	Notices			
→ e-assessment				
→ Certification claims	Controlled Assessment materials for GCS	SE specifications will be available to down	load from June 2009	
→ Results				
→ Post results	Use the drop-down menus below to select the controlled assessment material you require or search by unit code.			
→ Centre information	Ose the grop-down menus below to select the cont	rolled assessment material you require of	search by unit code.	
→ Assessors	Unit Code (eg, F123)	Select qualification type:	GCSE	
→ Search	Search	Select subject:	Art and Design	•
→ Resources		Select subject detail:	3D Design	
→ Admin			[SD Design	
By qualification	T			
→ GCE, GCSE, Principal Learning	 A266 - Controlled Assessment A266 - Resource Booklet 		(PDF 254KB) (PDF 254KB)	
→ OCR Nationals			(10120410)	
→ Functional Skills				
→ Skills for Life				
→ NVQ				
→ Vocationally related	Page notes			
→ CLAiT and iPro				

Download Adobe Acrobat software Accessibility Terms of use @2000-2009 OCR

Step 4 – Open materials

Click on the document link, the document will open in your browser

Click on 'Save As' to save to a location of your choice.



Step 5 – Troubleshooting

If you search for an invalid unit code, or if If you search for a valid unit code but there is no document currently available, the following message will be displayed.

🖉 Controlled Assessment Materials - Microsoft Internet Exp	lorer provided by Cambridge Assess	ment					_ 8 ×
G S + https://interchange.ocr.org.uk/Modules/CAM/Pag	es/CAM.aspx?menuindex=37			💌 🔒 🐓 🗙	🔎 Live Search		P •
<u>File Edit View Favorites Tools H</u> elp							
🖕 Favorites 🛛 🛵 🙋 Free Hotmail [8] Google 🙋 Web Slice Gal	llery 🕶						
Replied Business: Single/Dou O Ofqual - Downloads		x		\	🔊 - 🖃 🚔 - Bage -	- Safety - Tools -	? → ³
	except for permitted per						-
	OCR materials may be r	reproduced for use within a	centre, but may not be repro	duced for external	publication in		
	digital or other format wi	thout the express permission	in of OCR. Anyone wishing t	o reproduce OCR i	materials, for		
	purposes other than ass	essment, teaching or privat	e study must apply for permi	ission in writing fro	m OCR.		
	Teachers are reminded t	that the inappropriate disclo	sure of confidential assessm	ent material is cor	nsidered to		
	constitute malpractice.						
	© OCR 2009						
	(i)						
	GCE, GCSE and Entry	Level Science					
	Note that access to acc	occment materials for CCE	Sciences, GCSE Gateway	and Entry Loval Sc	ionco requires the		
			or Materials are not available				
			n the subject specific Suppo				
	Handbooks for GCE Sci	ences, Skills Assessment	Support Booklets for GCSE)	available from <u>www</u>	v.ocr.org.uk.		
	Use the drop-down menus below to	o select the controlled asses	sment material you require or	search by unit code			
			shield hat you require on	ocaron by ann couc			
	Unit Code (eg, F123)	A333	Select qualification type:	-Please	Select- 💌		
		Search	Select subject:	-Nothing	to Select- 💌		
		Search		riounig			
			Select subject detail:	-Nothing	to Select-		
	No description in the Discourse	ha ala dha sha 14 an sha					
	No document available. Please c	neck the unit code.					
	Copyright Information - http://www	v ocr.org.uk/about-us/our-pr	licies/convright/				
							_
	Page notes						
							-
•					😜 Internet	🖓 🕶 🔍 100'	% •

8 Guidance for the production of electronic Controlled Assessment

Structure for evidence

A Controlled Assessment portfolio is a collection of folders and files containing the candidate's evidence. Folders should be organised in a structured way so that the evidence can be accessed easily by a teacher or moderator. This structure is commonly known as a folder tree. It would be helpful if the location of particular evidence is made clear by naming each file and folder appropriately and by use of an index, called 'Home Page.'

There should be a top level folder detailing the candidate's centre number, candidate number, surname and forename, together with the Unit code A242/A244, so that the portfolio is clearly identified as the work of one candidate.

Each candidate's Controlled Assessment portfolio should be stored in a secure area on the centre network. Prior to submitting the Controlled Assessment portfolio to OCR, the centre should add a folder to the folder tree containing Controlled Assessment and summary forms.

Data formats for evidence

In order to minimise software and hardware compatibility issues, it will be necessary to save candidates' work using an appropriate file format.

Candidates must use formats appropriate to the evidence that they are providing and appropriate to viewing for assessment and moderation. Open file formats or proprietary formats for which a downloadable reader or player is available are acceptable. Where this is not available, the file format is not acceptable.

Electronic Controlled Assessment is designed to give candidates an opportunity to demonstrate what they know, understand and can do using current technology. Candidates do not gain marks for using more sophisticated formats or for using a range of formats. A candidate who chooses to use only word-processed documents will not be disadvantaged by that choice.

Evidence submitted is likely to be in the form of word-processed documents, PowerPoint presentations, digital photos and digital video.

To ensure compatibility, all files submitted must be in the formats listed overleaf. Where new formats become available that might be acceptable, OCR will provide further guidance. OCR advises against changing the file format that the document was originally created in. It is the centre's responsibility to ensure that the electronic portfolios submitted for moderation are accessible to the moderator and fully represent the evidence available for each candidate.

MPEG (*.mpg) QuickTime movie (*.mov) Macromedia Shockwave (*.acm) Macromedia Shockwave (*.dcr) Flash (*.swf) Windows Media File (*.wmf) MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4) Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Accepted File Formats
QuickTime movie (*.mov) Macromedia Shockwave (*.arm) Macromedia Shockwave (*.dcr) Flash (*.swf) Windows Media File (*.wmf) MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4) Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Movie formats for digital video evidence
Macromedia Shockwave (*.aam) Macromedia Shockwave (*.dcr) Flash (*.swf) Windows Media File (*.wmf) MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4) Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	MPEG (*.mpg)
Macromedia Shockwave (*.dcr) Flash (*.swf) Windows Media File (*.wmf) MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4) Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.dcc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	QuickTime movie (*.mov)
Flash (*.swf)Windows Media File (*.wmf)MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4)Audio or sound formatsMPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3)Graphics formats including photographic evidenceJPEG (*.jpg)Graphics file (*.pcx)MS bitmap (*.bmp)GIF images (*.gif)Animation formatsMacromedia Flash (*.fla)Structured markup formatsXML (*xml)Text formatsPDF (.pdf)Comma Separated Values (.csv)Rich text format (.rtf)Text document (.txt)Microsoft Office suitePowerPoint (.ppt)Word (.doc)Excel (.xls)Visio (.vsd)	Macromedia Shockwave (*.aam)
Windows Media File (*.wmf)MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4)Audio or sound formatsMPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3)Graphics formats including photographic evidenceJPEG (*.jpg)Graphics file (*.pcx)MS bitmap (*.bmp)GIF images (*.gif)Animation formatsMacromedia Flash (*.fla)Structured markup formatsXML (*xml)Text formatsPDF (.pdf)Comma Separated Values (.csv)Rich text format (.ttf)Text document (.txt)Microsoft Office suitePowerPoint (.ppt)Word (.doc)Excel (.xls)Visio (.vsd)	Macromedia Shockwave (*.dcr)
MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4) Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*.ml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Flash (*.swf)
Audio or sound formats MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*.ml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Windows Media File (*.wmf)
MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3) Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*.ml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	MPEG Video Layer 4 (*.mp4)
Graphics formats including photographic evidence JPEG (*.jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*.ml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Audio or sound formats
JPEG (*,jpg) Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	MPEG Audio Layer 3 (*.mp3)
Graphics file (*.pcx) MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Graphics formats including photographic evidence
MS bitmap (*.bmp) GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	JPEG (*.jpg)
GIF images (*.gif) Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Graphics file (*.pcx)
Animation formats Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	MS bitmap (*.bmp)
Macromedia Flash (*.fla) Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	GIF images (*.gif)
Structured markup formats XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Animation formats
XML (*xml) Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Macromedia Flash (*.fla)
Text formats PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Structured markup formats
PDF (.pdf) Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	XML (*xml)
Comma Separated Values (.csv) Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Text formats
Rich text format (.rtf) Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	PDF (.pdf)
Text document (.txt) Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Comma Separated Values (.csv)
Microsoft Office suite PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Rich text format (.rtf)
PowerPoint (.ppt) Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Text document (.txt)
Word (.doc) Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	Microsoft Office suite
Excel (.xls) Visio (.vsd)	PowerPoint (.ppt)
Visio (.vsd)	Word (.doc)
	Excel (.xls)
	Visio (.vsd)
Project (.mpp)	Project (.mpp)

www.ocr.org.uk OCR customer contact centre

General qualifications

Telephone 01223 553998 Facsimile 01223 552627 Email general.qualifications@ocr.org.uk

For staff training purposes and as part of our quality assurance programme your call may be recorded or monitored. © OCR 2011 Oxford Cambridge and RSA Examinations is a Company Limited by Guarantee. Registered in England. Registered office 1 Hills Road, Cambridge CB1 2EU. Registered company number 3484466. OCR is an exempt charity.



